
             NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Scrutiny Review – Access to Services for Older 
People 

 
 
MONDAY, 19TH NOVEMBER, 2007 at 10:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou, Alexander and Wilson 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 (IF ANY) 

 
 

2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear.  New items will 
be dealt with at Item 8 below). 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A Member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to the meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
 
A Member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a Member of the public, with knowledge of the 
relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
the Member’s judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
 



 

2 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 4)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of 15th October 2007. 

 
5. OVERVIEW AND FEEDBACK FROM COMMISSIONING PANEL  (PAGES 5 - 34)  
 
 To hear an overview of the Commissioning Panel process and to receive feedback 

from Member’s attendance at the meeting. 
 

6. LIBRARIES SERVICE  (PAGES 35 - 38)  
 
 To receive evidence from Diana Edmonds, Assistant Director Culture, Libraries and 

Learning. 
 

7. LEISURE SERVICES    
 
 To receive evidence from Andy Briggs, Head of Sports and Leisure Services. 

 
8. VOLUNTARY SECTOR    
 
 To receive evidence from Robert Edmonds. 

 
A background DVD will be shown. 
 

9. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 Monday December 17th. 13:00-15:00 – to be confirmed. 

 
 
 

 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE 

MONDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2007 

Councillors Bull (Chair), Adamou, Alexander and Wilson 

LC1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

Zeedy Thompson (Haringey Forum for Older People) 
Hazel Griffiths (Haringey Forum for Older People) 
Manuela Toporowska (Haringey Forum for Older People) 

LC2. URGENT BUSINESS  

None 

LC3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

None 

LC4. SCOPE AND TERMS OF REFERENCE  

Inclusion of Black and Minority Ethnic communities and geographic equity is welcome, 
discussion as to whether inclusion of gender balance in services should also be 
looked at. 

Agreed that the review will remain open minded and flexible throughout to allow for 
other areas to be incorporated where appropriate.  Issues identified may become 
recommended for further in depth review to ensure this review stays focused. 

The Terms of Reference were agreed. 

LC5. OLDER PEOPLE'S SERVICE PRESENTATION  

Tom Brown, Interim Assistant Director for Adults, Adult, Culture and Community 
Services (ACCS) Directorate spoke about the Older Peoples Service and the 
pathways taken by those accessing the service. 

Anyone over the age of 65years who is deemed as vulnerable is eligible for an 
assessment of need. 

First referrals generally come from other professionals and members of a person’s 
family with the first point of contact being either the Initial Contact Team at 
Cumberland Road or the Stuart Crescent Health Centre; usually they can not manage 
completely independently.   Assessment is then made as to whether Social Services 
is the most appropriate place (as opposed to health or the Department for Work and 
Pensions) and also ascertain the urgency of the person’s situation. 

If it is found that Social Services is the appropriate place then the complexity and 
urgency of the case is and whether intervention from for example the Voluntary sector 
is more appropriate. 

The service targets to complete an assessment within 28days, although most are 
dealt with within 14days.  This assessment includes detailed discussions with relevant 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE 

MONDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2007 

parties, judgements on risk and a persons needs in relation to all aspects of their life 
are looked at and the four bandings of the Fair Access to Care Services (FACS) 
applied.  Aim to try and reach a consensus with a person as to the best course of 
action.  Is a statutory service appropriate or redirection to voluntary sector? 

Haringey operates within the Substantial and Critical bandings of FACS).  Currently 
only those assessed at Critical or Substantial levels will receive commissioned 
services. 

Unless there is clear urgency the case then goes to the Commissioning Panel in order 
to consider the allocation of services.  The impact of providing or not providing a 
service is considered here. 

Both in-house and external providers are approached to see whether any of the low 
level needs can be met. 

A review is undertaken after 6-8 weeks and then approximately once a year.  If the 
person’s needs are more complex then contact is more regular.  If a person’s situation 
changes then contact is more frequent. This is often brought to light by a person’s 
carer or someone at a centre the person attends e.g. a day centre.  The aim here is to 
provide the optimum level of support so as not to promote over-dependence. 

There is also a Higher Needs Panel.  This panel is a multi-disciplinary, multi-agency 
group where people’s needs are assessed as to whether they meet the National NHS 
Continuing Care Criteria for funding.  This is when the need is deemed to be primarily 
health.  People who are being discharged from hospital requiring a large package of 
care at home, or who are being admitted to a nursing care home are automatically 
presented at the panel. As is anyone who has been assessed by a health or social 
care professional and looks likely to meet the criteria using the decision support tool 
that is used in conjunction with the eligibility criteria.

There is a means test for Council services to ascertain whether a person is required to 
make a contribution, these are in line with the Department of Health guidance. 

Ideal outcome = Independence. 

Carers 
The assessment also takes into consideration the Carers needs.  Noted that carers 
provide a valuable service which saves a lot of money.   

Discussion Points 

Funding 
The only external funding that is received is from government grants.  Examples of 
this are the Carers Grant and the Access and Systems Capacity Grant.  At present 
these are ring-fenced grants. 

Discussion as to whether it is possible to find out how many people present at Critical 
and Substantial.  This will be investigated and will report back to the panel. 

Most authorities have a Commissioning Panel.  Advantages of this include: 
Equity and consistency of decision making. 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE 

MONDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2007 

Ø Objectivity when looking at cases. 
Ø Ensures that all options have been looked at. 
Ø Ensures that the quality of assessment is high as it acts as a check on the 

process. 

Approximately 50% of first contacts with the service are filtered out before 
assessment.  Of the 50% of those assessed approximately 25% of these go on to 
receive a service. Discussion surrounding what happens to these and as to whether 
they are borderline eligible for services, also whether they would be likely to come 
back to the service at a later date should their situation deteriorate.   Analysis is not 
always possible due to resources.  Noted that health and social services jointly need 
to improve the management of people will lower levels of need in order to prevent 
them from moving into the higher level needs areas. 

The panel was of the view that those not qualifying for services should be contacted at 
a later date to see if their needs had been otherwise addressed. This is in line with the 
current agenda of a preventative approach. 

The Social Care workforce in Haringey does reflect the diversity of the borough, this 
has been officially audited.  There are also good links in place with faith groups and 
voluntary agencies which are able to reach the harder to reach groups. 

There are budgetary issues in the service.  It is impossible to predict how many 
people will come into the services within a year, at the same time there is set budget 
for the service.  Budget monitoring takes place on a regular basis, however due to the 
statutory requirement to provide a service to those who meet eligibility criteria there 
services are not withheld.  This may lead to an overspend. 

An overview of the Access Pathways Project, currently taking place in Adult, Culture 
and Community Services was given by John Haffenden (Assistant Director, 
Commissioning and Strategy): 
  
Current routes into services are complicated and do need to be simplified.  There is a 
need tom make the best use of facilities across the Council, health and the voluntary 
sector. 

The end vision of the project is for universal services to be accessed by all, this 
includes those will lower level needs who are not eligible for a social care package. 
Emphasis is on preventative services and early intervention. 

Current work includes looking at what is being done across each of the services in the 
ACCS Directorate and where the access points are.  Service directories are being 
looked at.  The Older Peoples service has a directory; it would be useful if every 
Councillor had a copy of this for when they are speaking to residents. 

Voluntary and community organisations will also be included and an aim is to ensure 
that the staff working in the Directorate will know what services are provided here. 

Noted that Melanie Ponomarenko has joined to Project Board so that the review and 
the project share information. 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE 

MONDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2007 

LC6. DRAFT REVIEW TIMETABLE  

Panel Members attendance at a Commissioning Panel meeting to be arranged asap.  
This will be Members only. 

Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Well-being to be invited to speak at a 
Panel meeting. 

Commissioners and Providers to be invited to panel meeting. 

Coordination of a list of places for panel to visit to be drawn up and scheduled in. 

Consideration to be given to the panel members having lunch at age concern to 
enable them to talk to people there. 

LC7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

19th November 2007  
10:00-12:00 

LC8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

None 

Page 4



All Our TomorrowsInverting the triangle of care

A joint discussion document on the future of services for older people

Agenda Item 5Page 5



In 2002 central and local governments agreed anumber of shared priorities – one of which isimproving the quality of life of older people
If we are to make real, significant and sustainableimprovements in the quality of life of older people,we will need to take radical steps, rather thantinkering round the edges. Fundamental changes areneeded in the way we think about ageing and olderpeople. The way in which public services operate andare organised will need to be radically revised. Thelegislative underpinnings of services for older peopleneed to be modernised to reflect a different visionfor the future. We must do more to eradicate povertyand inequalities in health and wellbeing. Theinterface between the public sector and the private,voluntary and community sectors still needs to beimproved and the value of informal carers betterrecognised.
The public sector needs to ensure that it isresponsive to the needs of older people. Thenational aspirations for better services for olderpeople is clear in the national service framework andthe NHS Plan and the new investments in health andsocial care reinforce this. The social servicescommunity is fully committed to the principles ofopposing ageism, developing person centred care,working in partnership with users and carers and thedevelopment of inclusive services. However, for localgovernment, social services and the social carecommunity and for the NHS, creating robust andresponsive services which will meet the needs oftoday’s and tomorrow’s older people posessignificant challenges and many new opportunities.This document looks at what some of these mightbe.
The framework of thinking is based on thefundamental principles of public sector reform.
We are committed to the engagement of older

people in the development of services and believe
that older people should be empowered to be full
partners in ensuring that there is a greater range of
flexible services which give them a greater choice in
care.
We are committed to working within a framework of
clear national standards and accountability and
believe this is essential to provide older people with
confidence in public services.
We believe that older people want local services
delivered locally. We therefore support the
movement to devolve power to the front line and
believe this will result in more flexible and
appropriate local services. This is one of the major
themes of this document. 
We believe we will need to work in partnership with
other public and independent organisations to
maximise our resources and promote an inclusive
approach to responding to the needs of older
people.
We believe that our workforce is our key resource and
that investing in our staff and developing flexible
new ways of working is essential to provide better
services for older people.
This is a huge project for the nation and we
recognise that we cannot tackle all the issues at
once. Nevertheless, the speed at which our society is
ageing means that this agenda is urgent now.
We hope that this document will promote a wide
discussion that will help take forward a national
debate about the future of social services for older
people.
David Behan
Alison King
Andrew Cozens

Foreword

David Behan,President, ADSS2002 - 2003

Alison King,Chair, LGA SocialAffairs and HealthExecutive

Andrew Cozens,President, ADSS2003 - 2004

© Copyright, Association of Directors of Social Services, October, 2003.Further copies of this booklet are available from the ADSS or the LGA websiteswww.adss.org.uk  www.lga.gov.ukADSS Charity Registration Number 299154

Page 6



Contents

All Our Tomorrows Page 1

Introduction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
Section OneOlder People Today
Major Achievements
Emergence of choice and involvementfor older people . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Emphasis on independence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Growth in partnership working . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Improving the quality of specialist services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Improving support to carers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4   
Current Challenges
Social exclusion and older people . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Uncoordinated commissioning . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Disjointed governance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Pressures on the delivery of services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
Modernising the workforce . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
Investment issues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
Modernising the legislation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8   
The key Issues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Section TwoOlder People Tomorrow      
A Future Vision for Older People

Setting the outcomes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Shifting the balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Promotion of wellbeing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Defining the outcomes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Tackling age discrimination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11   
Achieving the Vision
Changing the direction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
Changing the strategy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
Changing the way services
are commissioned . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
Changing the way services
are governed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
Changing the way services
are delivered . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Changing the workforce . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Changing the investment 
in older people . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
Changing legislation and regulation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16   
Recommendations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
Conclusions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
Appendix 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

AcknowledgementsAll Our Tomorrows was commissioned by Dr. Glenys Jones, Chair of the ADSS Older People’s Committee, and the LGA’s social affairs and health executive.It was written by Neil Singleton and Alison Painter, consultants with Creative Exchanges.The material incorporates many of the ideas and comments from the editorial group, which in addition to the above included Simon Weeks of the LGA, Christine Paley, Vice Chair of the ADSS Older People’s Committee, and Eileen Waddington of the Nuffield Institute for Health. Special thanks also go to the participants of several seminars held in 2003 who contributed greatly to the content of this document. These seminars were attendedby older people, and representatives of many public and independent agencies. A full list of names of all those who attended are detailed in appendix one.

Page 7



All Our TomorrowsImproving the Quality of Life ofOlder People
This discussion paper from the ADSS and the LGAdetails the progress made so far in building betterservices for older people and sets out a positivevision for the way forward. The first sectionhighlights some of the major achievements so far,and some of the challenges we still face. The secondsection looks at how our services need to change inthe future and how we need to adapt our policiesand services to improve the lives of older peoplereflecting the needs of the ageing population.
It is well known that the population of the UK isgetting older. People are living longer and expectmuch more from their lives and the services they use.In 1900 only 4 per cent of the population were agedover 601. The latest figures for England from theGovernment Actuary2 show that this had grown to 21per cent by 2003, is expected to be 25 per cent in2020 and will be 29 per cent by 2031. Year on year,this is rapidly increasing the demand by older peoplefor services. Local authorities have a key role inresponding to the needs of older people. This growthin demand is already having a major impact uponthem.
Those who are younger often consider older peopleas a separate group. We readily use the expression‘the elderly’, setting us apart from each other, simplybecause of age. Yet we would do well to rememberthat all of us age. Just because we are older, doesn’tmean our fundamental needs change.
We want to be active partners in the decisions thataffect our lives. We want to be treated equally withdignity and respect. We want to remain as healthyand as independent as possible for the rest of ourlives. We need to be able to access the services thateveryone else uses. When we need specialist help,we don’t want to be faced with bureaucraticresponses, or arguments about whose responsibilityit is to help us. If we require specialist services, wewant these to be tailored to our needs. Achievingthis for older people presents a challenge.      
Many older people believe their contributions arenot valued as much as they should be, or as much asthey are in many other societies. Such negativeimages can lead to age discrimination, socialexclusion, isolation and poverty. Yet older people

have a wealth of knowledge, skills and experiencethat can enrich all of our lives. 
An independent inquiry in 1998, under thechairmanship of Sir Donald Acheson3 found that:
l Older people are more likely to be living inpoverty, whether this is defined as below half-average income or the receipt of means-testedbenefits,
l The poorest pensioners, who rely most on benefit,have experienced a relative deterioration in theirincome,
l Older people are at risk of fuel poverty,
l Properties in poor condition aredisproportionately occupied by single olderpeople, and tend to be older, privately rentedproperties,
l Older women are particularly likely to live alone,
l Older people experience lack of access totransport disproportionately,
l Older people are more likely to fear becomingvictims of crime than younger people.

So how can we respond to thechallenge?
We need to confront ageism and other types ofdiscrimination against older people. In particular weneed to:
l Recognise the vital role that older people play inour society, and improve the participation andengagement of older people in policy and serviceissues,
l Encourage healthy lifestyles for older people;break down the barriers to employment, andensure they can access the general servicesprovided for all of us - all with the aim ofpromoting independence,
l Have a joined up partnership approach to howservices are delivered and ensure integration ofkey services such as health, housing, socialservices, transport, leisure and lifelong learning,planning, regeneration and the environment,
l Ensure specialist services are responsive, flexible,integrated and of high quality.

Introduction

All Our Tomorrows Page 2

n We readily usethe expression `theelderly', setting usapart from each othersimply because ofage.

n When we needspecialist help wedon't want to befaced withbureaucraticresponses, orarguments aboutwhose responsibilityit is to help us.

n Properties in poorcondition aredisproportionatelyoccupied by olderpeople and tend to beolder and privatelyrented.

n Older people aremore likely to fearbecoming victims ofcrime than youngerpeople.

Page 8



Emergence of Choice andInvolvement for Older People
The Community Care Act 1993 placed aresponsibility on local authorities to offer choice andinvolvement in the social services provided to olderpeople. Although service focused in its approach, thelegislation provided an impetus for involving olderpeople in choices about their lives. Councilssuccessfully managed the challenges of introducingfundamental changes to assessment,commissioning and procurement of social careservices through the modernisation of managementand professional practices alike.
The introduction of direct payments in 1996,4 andfurther encouragement by the government in 20015
to use these for older people, has enabled councilsto give individual older people a budget to purchasetheir own chosen services, following an agreedassessment of needs. 
The Better Government for Older People initiativereports a whole range of innovative projects6 by localgovernment, the pension service and others, activelyseeking new ways of involving older people in suchthings as employment, lifelong learning,7 userfriendly information, and designing a new learningand resource centre.
A number of initiatives, such as health action zones,have been introduced by the government to reduceinequalities in areas of greatest need. Many of thesehave recognised the importance of involving olderpeople in their local communities. The nationalservice framework for older people8 also recognisesthe need to combat age discrimination.  Councils areactively working with their health partners to achievethis.

Emphasis on Independence
Over recent years councils have been changing thebalance between home and residential care.Research into the changes in social care servicessince the mid 1980s9 found that: 
l Need related circumstances of users and carersare now the primary cause of admission toinstitutional care rather than supply side issuessuch as a shortage of domiciliary care,
l Care packages are now more efficiently meetingneeds,

l Services are helping to realise a series ofoutcomes such as extending length of stay in thecommunity.
The NHS Plan10 recognised the need for ways ofbridging the gap for older people as they move fromdependence in hospital to independence at home.Joint health and social services intermediate careteams have been established, providing rapidresponse to emergencies, intensive rehabilitationand recuperation. Inspections of 23 councils in2001/2 found a wide range of new innovative servicespromoting independence particularly in the area ofintermediate care.11

In recognition of the fact that an older person’s homecan have a marked affect on their quality of life,12
especially their independence, councils, inpartnership with others, have developed schemes tofacilitate adaptations and repairs so that olderpeople can remain in their existing homes. They arecontinuing to develop smarter forms of equipmentto support mobility and monitoring. 
Private and public housing providers have developedsupported housing. This includes the developmentof ‘extra care’ supported housing, and large scale,mixed tenure villages which support independenceby building any specialist services required aroundthe needs of a person living there.
In addition to subsidised public transport for olderpeople, imaginative transport schemes have beendeveloped locally, which enhance the mobility ofpeople outside their homes. Examples include ‘dial-a-ride’ and ‘shopmobility’ services, and ruraltransport schemes.

Growth in Partnership Working
Arising out of the Local Government Act 2000, whichplaced a responsibility on local authorities toimprove the social, economic and environmentalwellbeing of their area, local strategic partnershipshave now been established almost everywhere. Ledby councils, these bring together into onepartnership public, private, voluntary andcommunity sectors with the aim of reducing healthinequalities and social deprivation by better localco-ordination. This has begun to shift the focustowards service outcomes being about securingwellbeing for all.

Choice and involvement,independence, growth inpartnership working,shifting the focus...

All Our Tomorrows Page 3

SECTIONONE
Page 9



Planning has consequently become much moreintegrated. The recent NHS led local health deliveryplans have involved a number of key stakeholdersacross the whole local community including olderpeople and social services.
The Health Acts of 1999 and 200113 have encouragedhealth and social services to pool budgets leading tomore jointly commissioned services reducing thegaps for service users. The supporting peopleinitiative14 has similarly brought together housing,social services and health on a local basis tocommission the support element for supportedhousing.
At the service level, local partners are busilyestablishing integrated teams. Staff are drawn fromacross the agencies, particularly health and socialservices, with the objective of facilitating seamlessservices. In some cases these teams are beinglocated in easily accessed ‘one stop shops’. 
Some of these developments involve nationalgovernment services. For example, the pensionsservice have partnerships with a number of councilsfor joint financial assessment. Benefits teams offer asingle route into the pensions service, social servicesand the supporting people initiative.
In 2002, the chief inspector of social servicesreported that inspections demonstrated socialservices departments had actively started toimplement the national services framework in co-operation with the NHS and other stakeholdersincluding users and carers.15

Partnership with the independent sector has beenembraced by social services. Directly providedspecialist services now account for well below half ofthose procured. Illustrating the change: in 1997 35per cent of residential care and 70 per cent of homecare was directly provided. In 2002 this had fallen to20 per cent and 44 per cent respectively.16

Improving the Quality of SpecialistServices
At  the end of March 2002, there were about 203,500older people in England being supported by socialservices in residential/nursing care. Communitybased services such as home care, day care andmeals were being provided to approximately 683,000older people.17

Despite well publicised exceptions, research showshigh levels of satisfaction by service users. In onehome care service study, a staggering 97 per cent ofolder people agreed or strongly agreed that careworkers make sure they are comfortable, describingcare staff as ‘friendly, cheerful, discreet, thorough,obliging and gentle’.18 When comparing changessince the mid 1980s another study found that‘services benefit a wider range of people’ and ‘theyare more proactive in achieving outcomes highlyvalued by users, carers and policy makers’.19
Department of Health inspections in 2002 also foundthat older people generally indicated they weresatisfied with the services they received’.20

Improving Support to Carers
The Carers Act;21 subsequent legislation,  guidance,and the carers’ grant have emphasised theimportance of support to informal carers. Althoughproblems still do remain, councils have respondedpositively to the Act. A government report22
concluded that the implementation of the Act hadbrought a greater focus on carers’ needs and notedthat in some cases carers are offered very sensitive,practical and emotional support.

Current ChallengesSocial Exclusion and Older People
Older people are often still excluded from universalservices in the community, ones that we would allexpect to use.
The ability to travel from our homes is critical formeeting our basic needs such as shopping, contactwith others and full participation in community life.Research23 has established that good access totransport is associated with quality of life for olderpeople. And yet, according to a survey,24 over onemillion UK citizens over 65 feel acutely isolated intheir own homes. The same survey found that trainand bus operators think of older people as anuisance or as potentially reducing profits, becauseof demands for free access. 
Having a suitable home is crucial to our wellbeingand yet the Housing Corporation points to a lack ofunderstanding of ageing in relation to housingdesign and planning. A view exists that just a fewcategories of specialist housing will meet the needs

All Our Tomorrows Page 4

Integrated teams,improving specialistservices, support tocarers, social exclusion...
n Inspections in 2002demonstrated thatSSDs have activelystarted to implementthe national serviceframework.

n In 1997, 35% ofresidential care and70% of home carewas directly provided.In 2002 this had fallento 20% and 44%.

n Older people areoften still excludedfrom universalservices in thecommunity - ones thatwe would all expectto use.

n A survey found thattrain and busoperators think ofolder people as anuisance, or aspotentially reducingprofits.

Page 10



of all older people. This is an example of fittingpeople into services rather than designing servicesaround the needs of people. It results in suchexamples as older people having insufficient roomwithin their homes to entertain others. There is oftenalso a failure to respond to older people living ingeneral housing who, without enough support, canbe socially isolated.25

None of us could easily maintain our independenceif we were unable to access health care services whenwe needed them. Ageing does bring a greater risk ofneeding health care26’27 and yet older people areoften seen as a burden rather than the major agegroup of adults who legitimately require services. A1998 Inquiry28 found that poor older people may beless likely to receive some health care services andhave poorer health outcomes after receiving theseservices. Age Concern reported a survey of GPsfinding that 77 per cent confirmed that age basedrationing occurred.29 None of us would easilymaintain our dignity if we were regarded as a burden,just because we shared a health condition with ahuge number of other people. This ought to be anargument for more help rather than less.
It is likely that this picture would be repeated inother universal services such as leisure andeducation. The challenge is to find ways ofintegrating older people into their owncommunities, utilising the universal services we allrequire.

Uncoordinated Commissioning
While local strategic partnerships have a key role inpromoting wellbeing, there is no effectivemechanism to support the local strategicpartnership to coordinate commissioning from theviewpoint of older people. 
Joined up commissioning between partner agenciesfor specialist services used by older people isdeveloping. However, challenges remain. Differingtargets, priorities, planning systems, commissioningand governance arrangements, work force roles,budgetary constraints, delivery, and performancemonitoring make it difficult to deliver services thatare coherent and joined up. The national serviceframework, while giving much needed and welcomedattention to older people, is far too narrowly focusedon health. It is clear that if the gaps in services for

older people are to be closed and services better co-ordinated, then improved forms of joined upplanning and commissioning are required.
The challenge is to find ways of commissioninguniversal services on a joined up community widebasis and specialist services on a system wide jointagency basis. 

Disjointed Governance
Joined up commissioning requires joined upgovernance. The NHS Plan30 suggests either joint orlead commissioning across health and socialservices but this does not cover other key partners.The planning for the implementation of the nationalservice framework for older people and the localhealth delivery plans led by primary care trusts hasencouraged wider participation, but largely from ahealth perspective. The duty of wellbeing in theLocal Government Act 2000 resulted in localauthorities leading community strategies, and anational agreement has been reached for capacityplanning involving all partners including theindependent sector. However, there is no consistentgovernance framework in which commissioning canoperate across all needs and all partners.
The key objective for a governance framework is tosecure seamless journeys for service users and theircarers when utilising both universal and specialistservices, while holding partners to account for theirindividual contributions.
Recent Health Acts31 have introduced flexibilitiesthat ease the way for joined up governance,including creating a care trust. However, although insome cases this can be helpful, it focuses attentionprimarily on the specialist services provided byhealth and social services. Mechanisms still need tobe found to include all the other communityservices.
A study by the Audit Commission32 concluded thatsome areas had achieved high levels of integrationwith a minimum of structural change while othershad adopted care trust status. They suggested thatthe level of organisational change necessary todeliver integrated care is likely to be different in eachcommunity; one model does not fit all.
This presents a challenge to each community.Services must work together if they are to make the

All Our Tomorrows Page 5

Assessing health care,joined up commissioning,governance, flexibilitiesand seamless services...

Page 11



maximum difference to the lives of older people.Every community needs to establish the appropriategovernance arrangements for their locality in orderto make this a reality.

Pressures on the Delivery of Services
Apart from the issues for older people accessinguniversal services identified above, similar problemsexist for social services. The independent Inquiryinto inequalities33 found that:
l Levels of domiciliary support are insufficient tocounter an increasing trend for more older peopleto enter residential care.
l Where demand for services exceeds supply thosein the poorest groups are protected throughmeans testing. However charging for essentialsupport services can disadvantage those withaverage incomes, while those with small savingsfeel penalised.
l Poorer older people are less able to bear theadditional costs of disability such as theadditional laundry costs associated withincontinence.
Inequalities are likely to worsen unless action istaken. People are living longer. two per cent of thepopulation in 2003 were over 85 years, but it isanticipated that this will grow to 2.5 per cent by 2020and 3.2 per cent by 2031. It is a much higherproportion of people over 85 years who requirespecialist support from social services.
When support is required, informal carers currentlyprovide a very significant share of this. This is oftenwithout the direct involvement of outside agencies.There are six million carers in Great Britain with onein eight adults giving informal care.34 Informal carersare often crucial to older people and help to avoiddependence on specialist services.
However, a government report35 in 1998 noted thatthe quality and type of support that carers receiveremains a matter of chance. In some cases, carersreceived no information about what might beavailable and they were not assessed. A survey ofcarers in 200336 by Carers UK reported only slightimprovement.
Alongside this, the population in the ages whotraditionally provide this informal support (35 to 60

years) is set to fall. There were three people aged 35– 60 for every older person aged 70 and over in 2003,this is projected to fall by 35 per cent to two peoplefor every older person by 2031.
The challenges are to improve the delivery of socialservices to service users and carers while expandingopportunities for choice and responding to thepopulation-driven increase in demand. 

Modernising the Workforce
Modern services require a modern workforce.However, social services struggle to recruit andretain staff and their roles don’t cover the new tasksrequired. In some cases the prescribed roles arerestrictive.
Traditionally social care has had a poor image37 andfor many posts, low pay. A national report38 in 2002showed that the numbers working in social servicesdepartments fell overall by three per cent over oneyear. This was particularly marked within servicesassociated with older people: domiciliary care by 7.5per cent and residential care by 4.3 per cent.Turnover for home care employees was a high 16.1per cent. 
A similar survey39 of independent care providersrevealed, in residential care, vacancies of 7.1 per centand 8.5 per cent for care workers and nurses, andturn over rates of 24.9 per cent and 15.3 per centrespectively. Fifty per cent of respondents reportedsevere difficulties in recruitment, citingattractiveness of pay as the most common reason.The turnover of home care workers in theindependent sector was a massive 35.8 per cent (50per cent in London), the main reasons given beinglow pay and nature of the work.
A national report concluded that there are shortagesof qualified staff and competition with other sectorsfor unqualified staff.40 This is exacerbated bynational shortages in the NHS of GPs, communitynurses and other staff.
Many of the traditional roles and skills of staff needto change. Tasks such as rehabilitative work forpeople with disability, including older people, areshared between different professional groups andcan include occupational therapists, social workers,care staff and nurses. What is required are new roles,which bring together a number of the skills related to

All Our Tomorrows Page 6

Inequalities, carers,assessment and betteropportunities, staffand workforce issues...
n Poorer older peopleare less able to bearthe additional costs ofdisability.

n In some cases,carers receive noinformation aboutwhat might beavailable, and theyare not assessed.

n Modern servicesrequire a modernworkforce. However,social servicesstruggle to recruit andretain staff.

n There are shortagesof qualified staff andcompetition withother sectors forunqualified staff.

n What is required isnew roles whichbring together anumber of the skillsrelated torehabilitation andreablement.

Page 12



rehabilitation and reablement. We also need todevelop the role of community development withprofessionals becoming facilitators and catalysts forchange.
A related workforce issue is the need to change thetraditional ways staff work across agency boundaries.Collaborative working requires training tounderstand the roles of other agencies’ staff and inthe particular skills of referring across the system toget services delivered. Staff from partner agenciesacross the public and independent sector may needsimilar skills, yet joint recruitment, training andcadet schemes are largely absent. 
Traditionally social services for older people havebeen staffed with people less trained and qualifiedthan the remainder of social services. The 2001workforce survey41 showed that in residential care 39per cent of managers of older people’sestablishments held relevant qualifications.However for managers of children’s establishmentsthe figures were 67 per cent. In the home care serviceonly 9 per cent of managers possess a relevantqualification.
The numbers of field professional social workersshow a similar imbalance. The number of socialworkers in the older people’s and children and familyservices are roughly equal42 and yet the volume ofwork is significantly higher in services for olderpeople: the proportion of expenditure by socialservices on children being 23 per cent and for olderpeople 45 per cent.43

National action is being given to the appropriatetraining and qualifications of the workforce but thechallenge is to give continued attention to theseissues, and speed up the pace of implementation. 

Investment Issues
An adequate income is the prerequisite for meetingour needs. Essential items such as nutritious food,heating, mobility, independence, autonomy, choice,participation in the community and thus dignity,often depend on being able to afford them. Thismakes pensions one of the most crucial services forolder people. 
However, the minimum income guaranteed for anolder single person is only £5,104 per year and£7,790 for a couple.44 As a proportion of UK average

earnings, this is 15 per cent.45 Considering allpensioners, even the mean net income after housingcosts, is only £8,216 for a single male and £6,656 fora single female.46 Additionally, many pensionershave not taken up all the benefits to which they areentitled. In 1999/2000 between £930 million and£1,860 million in entitlements went unclaimed bypensioners47 despite sustained attention by centraland local government and the voluntary sector.
A very recent national survey concluded that 45 percent of older people surveyed remain in poverty,lacking two or more basic items or activities thatthey could not afford to purchase.48 Successivegovernments have encouraged individuals toprepare for their retirement through occupationaland private pensions, but recently employers havemoved away from final salary schemes, leavingfuture pensioners dependent on the vagaries of thestock market. 
Having sufficient resources can also be an issuewhen needing specialist services. NHS services arefree but social services are means tested. In the caseof local authority supported residential care,residents make a significant financial contribution tothe costs. In the case of NHS continuing health careservices are free. Despite a commendable jointapproach by the government and local authorities tocreate a common framework for all councils insetting eligibility criteria,49 the distinction is notalways clear. This opens up fault lines between thetwo services, with significant financial consequencesfor the service user, and both services riding on theresult.
A similar situation occurs for specialist housing andsocial services for people in their own homes, wherecharges are also made. Consequently it mattersfinancially who is visiting a service user e.g. thecommunity nurse who is free or the home carerwhere a charge is made. Yet the boundaries betweenpersonal care and nursing care are increasinglyblurred.
Charging for services also places a perverse incentiveon social services departments struggling to juggleresources. Where older people have high levels ofneeds, even if the gross costs are greater, it is oftencheaper to place someone in residential care. This isbecause the charge a local authority can realisticallymake to the service user for domiciliary care issignificantly less than for residential care.

All Our Tomorrows Page 7

Workforce imbalances,inadequate pensions,means-testing, eligibility,perverse incentives...

Page 13



The challenges are to ensure older people havesufficient resources to access the services they needand that there are no perverse incentives that distortthe pattern of specialist services.

Modernising the Legislation
Almost ten years after the implementation of thecommunity care reforms,50 a government reportidentified that the number of households receivinghome care from social services51 reduced by 18 percent from 1999 to 2002, and yet the number of hoursof care provided increased by 14 per cent over thesame period.52

This trend reflects the enormous effort made bysocial services to concentrate resources on thosepeople with higher levels of need and dependency.The intention is to avoid the use of residential carefor those people where intensive support can enablethem to remain at home. Given budget constraintsthis means that older people with lower levels ofneed receive less help. The investment has also beenat the expense of preventative or promotional ‘lowerlevel’ services. This is an unintended consequence ofthe changes made in the community care reforms.
This is perhaps unsurprising. Although the 1993changes were radical in many respects, they stillrelied heavily upon concepts rooted in the Poor Law.Like the legislation that preceded them such as theNational Assistance Act 1948 and the ChronicallySick and Disabled Persons Act 1970, the emphasis isupon public services providing a ‘welfare net’ tocatch those who either experience the severestdifficulties and/or who have not been able to makeprovision for themselves. 
This has led to narrow definitions of entitlementlinked to a rigorous assessment of the needs andmeans of individuals who request services. Itcontrasts with an approach seeking to promote thehealth and wellbeing of older people through the useof mainstream universally accessible services. Thefocus on the ‘welfare net’ for older people hasreduced the focus on considering how services, suchas transport, supply of food, housing, education,leisure, can contribute to meeting the needs of thismajor age group of citizens.
The challenge is to review whether today’s legislationis appropriate for meeting tomorrow’s needs.

The Key Issues
Services for older people are not just about socialcare or health. They cover the wide range of serviceswe all need. Yet older people are more likely toexperience poverty and find it difficult to afford basicnecessities. Where social care is required, localgovernment has developed extensive specialistservices, often of a very high quality. This is inresponse to the continual efforts made by thegovernment to improve the lives of older people.However, this has been at the expense of ‘low levelmaintenance’ or preventative services. This deficit isexacerbated when universal services such astransport and housing are not tailored to the needsof older people.
Older people will soon make up 25 per cent of thepopulation and we need to plan changes now if weare to respond to these issues. 
l How can older people better engage with thecommunity and its universal services?
l How do we tackle discrimination against olderpeople?
l How do all the key agencies and the widercommunity, including older people, work togetherto improve the commissioning of services?
l How does each community establish joined upgovernance arrangements?
l How do agencies rise to the challenges ofdeveloping a responsive and skilled workforce?
l How will social services deliver high qualityservices to older people and carers alike?
l How do we tackle poverty for older people? 
l How do we develop the right legislativeframework?

All Our Tomorrows Page 8

Outdated legislation,the `welfare net',mainstream services andreviewing the law...
n The focus on the`welfare net' for olderpeople has reducedthe focus on howservices cancontribute to meetingolder persons' needs.

n Services for olderpeople are not justabout social care orhealth - they cover thewide range ofservices we all neednow.

n Older people willsoon make up 25% ofthe population and weneed to plan changesnow if we are torespond to theseissues.

n How do all the keyagencies and thewider communitywork together toimprove thecommissioning ofservices?

Page 14



Setting the Outcomes
The United Nations Principles for Older Peopleemphasise the importance of independence,participation, care, self fulfilment and dignity as weage. Building on these principles, the ADSS and theLGA propose that we should seek to achieve thefollowing outcomes for older people:
l Living longer and healthier lives – includingprotection from abuse and exploitation.
l Better quality of life, enhanced lifestyles –better access to leisure, social activities andlifelong learning.
l Further opportunities for employment – moreolder people having the opportunity to work orhaving access to other income-generatingopportunities.
l Reduced poverty – elimination of poverty in oldage and greater financial independence.
l More independence and interdependence –relationships based on reciprocity rather thandependence.
l Better informed – increased access toinformation and advice so that older people cantake action for themselves.
l More involved in decision making – fully able toinfluence the development of key policy areasincluding the governance, implementation andshaping of services and to exercise theirdemocratic rights as citizens of theircommunities.
l Greater control and autonomy – more choiceand control over the services provided to them.
l No discrimination – Ageism, stereotyping andother types of discrimination against older peopleconfronted and stopped.
How we set a new direction to achieve theseoutcomes is the theme for the remainder of thisdocument.

Shifting the Balance 
Currently we focus most resources for older peopleon those with the most severe needs. In Figure 1,statutory services are concentrated at the very tip ofthe triangle. This focus on acute care and the most

frail older people has been emphasised even more,by the drive to reduce delayed discharges fromhospital.

Future services need to reverse this trend byinverting the triangle so that the community strategyand promotion of the wellbeing of older people is atthe top of the triangle and the extension of universalservices for all older people is seen as crucial to allagencies, see Figure 2.

Key features of this approach are:
l Community members, including older people,and agencies working together, taking collectiveresponsibility for promoting the wellbeing ofolder people and setting priorities.
l Agencies focusing jointly on what needs to beachieved and how each will contribute to this,rather than a preoccupation with internalstructures and boundaries.
l Professionals, while recognising their specificskills, being concerned with growing the capacity

All Our Tomorrows Page 9

A Future Vision for Older People
SECTIONTWO

Support for Older People Tomorrow Figure 2

Support for Older People Today Figure 1

Page 15



and capability of universal services, becomingfacilitators, catalysts, and enablers in developingservices in the community.
l Universal services enabling people to besupported in the community more safely and forlonger.
l Information, advice and other resources availableto empower older people in accessing theservices they need when they need them.

Promotion of wellbeing
Inverting the triangle also turns the concept ofprevention upon its head. Two broad definitions ofprevention have been recognised.53 these are:
l Services which prevent or delay the need for morecostly intensive services,
l Strategies and approaches that promote thequality of life of older people and theirengagement in the community.
The first of these definitions follows from the logic offigure 1 and has underpinned community carepolicies for many years. This form of prevention hasbeen aimed at frail older people. The seconddefinition follows from the logic of figure 2.Promotional policies aimed at all older people arenecessary to promote wellbeing more effectively.
This revised definition of prevention focuses oncitizenship, participation and partnership. A recentpaper, Living Well in Old Age,54 points out that ‘olderpeople are citizens of their community rather thanmere consumers of health and social careorganisations.’
The objectives behind preventative strategies needto change. The old definition is characterised bypromoting choice and independence. While stillimportant, we need to go beyond these to a morecomplete sense of empowerment. Adults not onlyexercise choice between the options they are givenor face, they possess the much greater ability tocontrol their lives and create their own options.Adults don’t just seek to avoid dependence onothers but are interdependent, enjoying equalrelationships with others. 
A further paper55 highlighted that the extension ofcontrol and interdependence is fundamental tosuccessful ageing. We should recognise and promote

ways in which older people are able to exercise morecontrol over their lives if they are to be trulyconsidered by us as adults. We should support themaintenance and development of new relationships,no longer based on dependency, but on an equalfooting, contributing as well as receiving.

Defining the Outcomes
At present each agency has their own set of goalsand objectives. Many of these are not framed fromthe perspective of an older person in terms ofdesired outcomes. This focus on outcomes needs tostart from the perspective of what older peopleuniversally need. The Audit Commission and BetterGovernment for Older People in 200356 broughttogether information about what older people sayare the key factors that would help them to liveindependent lives, and this should inform thedevelopment of a national set of wellbeing outcomesfor older people.
As well as national wellbeing outcomes for olderpeople, communities may wish to develop their ownset of local outcomes that they want to see for allolder people in their community. These may berelated to particular needs of the community.
Both national and local outcomes for older peopleneed to be clearly expressed in language thateveryone understands such as healthier olderpeople, older people who are better informed, morechoice and power to make decisions, independence,better access to services, dying with dignity. As oneresident said, ‘the words need to speak to thepeople!’
Rather than each agency focusing on deliveringservice objectives and targets they should berequired to say how they will contribute to deliveringthe national and local outcomes for older peopleand work across organisational barriers to achievethis. The aim will be to improve the wellbeing ofolder people rather than creating inward lookingorganisations focusing on agency processes orperformance.
Progress against outcomes needs to be monitored.National indicators inform all stakeholders aboutthe progress achieved in relation to agencyobjectives and targets. comprehensive performanceassessments57 provide a basis for monitoringservices across councils and the star ratings for

All Our Tomorrows Page 10

n Adults don't justseek to avoiddependence on othersbut areinterdependent,enjoying equalrelationships withothers.

n Focusing onoutcomes needs tostart from theperspective of whatolder peopleuniversally need.

n National and localoutcomes for olderpeople need to beclearly expressed inlanguage everyoneunderstands.

n Indicators need tobe easy to collect,easy to benchmark,easily understandableby the general public

n Local and centralgovernment need totake a proactiveapproach to revisingthe image of olderpeople.

Prevention, outcomeorientation, wellbeing,working across barriers,defining outcomes...

Page 16



health provide a similar approach for health trusts.However, both need to be revitalised if they are toprovide whole system monitoring. Indicators areneeded on a cross agency basis to monitor outcomesfor older people. 
Local communities will want to develop their ownindicators to monitor whether they are achievinglocal outcomes for older people. Research carriedout in America58 highlighted the importance of thebuy-in by the local community to local indicators.These indicators are known as ‘town square’indicators and are owned and understood byeveryone.
Indicators need to be easy to collect, easy tobenchmark, easily understandable to the generalcitizen, few… But important.

Tackling Age Discrimination
None of this will be achieved without tackling agediscrimination. Negative images contribute to thepoverty, social exclusion and isolation of olderpeople. We must develop positive images of ageingif we are to ensure the active participation andengagement of older people in our communities.This means challenging and changing attitudes toolder people. Local and central government need totake a proactive approach to revising the image forolder people, and set an example by developingpublication and media standards in all theirdocuments to improve this image.
Having the right forums at national and local levelsto represent and consult with older people will alsoput older people closer to the centre of settingnational and local policies and help to tackle agediscrimination.

Achieving the VisionChanging the Direction
The vision, which needs to be shared, demands anew way of looking at the networks of people andservices in the community. This is illustrated inFigure 3. Older people and their immediate informalcarers are in the centre interacting with universalservices: the active community coloured light green.Specialist services are on the outside interactingwith older people only when they are needed: the

specialist community coloured blue. 

This model represents a much better connected localnetwork than exists currently, ensuring betteroutcomes for access, choice and a seamless service.
The local authority would have a leadership role inachieving this by: 
l Facilitating the development of this newdirection,
l Ensuring that services within the ‘activecommunity’ are accessible, and meet the needs ofolder people and their informal carers,
l Overseeing the development of comprehensivewellbeing strategies, not just focused on healthand social care.
It will be important to have a dedicated staff team ata local level to sustain the momentum ofimplementing the new direction, sustain thepartnerships and ensure strategies that cross agencyboundaries are delivered.
Deciding the size of the active community will be akey issue for each council based on local issues.Active communities could be based around aparticular local authority area, neighbourhood,primary care trust locality, or other areas that form a

All Our Tomorrows Page 11

Tackling discrimination,universal and specialistservices, the activecommunity, priorityissues...
A New Direction in the Community Figure 3

Page 17



natural community. It could be along the lines of theapproach taken by the community action network,which promotes social entrepreneurship in servicedelivery.

Changing the Strategy
Each community, including older people, will needto undertake a community assessment of the keyissues for older people in the community. Thisassessment will take time and resources, butresearch carried out in America59 emphasises itsimportance because the end result is a strongcommunity agenda. By undertaking such a processthe wider community and all stakeholders feelownership and responsibility. Older people need tobe actively involved in the community assessmentand be central to this process.
In essence, the assessment is about building a‘community portrait’ on which to base the vision.The information will help determine the priorities todefine the community outcomes in relation to olderpeople, setting a community agenda.
Once agreement about the priority issues forimproving outcomes for older people has beenachieved, statutory and voluntary agencies, togetherwith members of the community need to work todevelop a shared strategy to achieve the desiredoutcomes. This should involve an understanding of‘what works’ through looking at research and the useof the current evidence base. It should also involvedeveloping an implementation plan, withinteragency agreements to deliver the strategy. Thiswill link into other key strategy documents, forexample the local health delivery plan and thecommunity plan.
In relation to local strategies, a recent discussionpaper60 identified nine key elements which need tobe addressed when developing a local strategy.These are illustrated in Figure 4.

Changing the Way Services areCommissioned
At present, whole systems commissioning andcommissioning for the active community are notlocked into a governance framework. It is importantthat this happens. We already have a tool to achieve

this through local health delivery plans, but theseare very health focused, reflecting the focus of thenational service framework and will need to beadapted taking on a comprehensive whole systemfocus. The power of local authorities to promote theeconomic, social and environmental wellbeing oftheir area under the Local Government Act 2000offers another opportunity on which to build.However, a framework for ‘whole systems’commissioning based on the needs of communitiesclearly needs to be developed further.
There are three levels of commissioning: at anindividual level, at the community level, andcommissioning for specialist services.
At an individual level commissioning needs toaccommodate the move to greater choice withinservices and arise from the single assessmentprocess. Increasing the use of direct payments willmean that more people will purchase and managethe delivery of services themselves, a shift away fromcommissioning by statutory agencies. 
Some people may prefer others to assist or act ontheir behalf in purchasing services. To accommodatethis an extension of resources for brokerage,advocacy and support will be necessary.
In the community, commissioning will arise from thelocal community strategy. Commissioning for theactive community services coloured light green inFigure 3, needs to be locally led, engaging localcommunity members including older people andtheir carers.
Commissioning for the more specialist servicescoloured blue in Figure 3 also needs to be informed

All Our Tomorrows Page 12

Strategic change, levelsof commissioning, clearaccountability and localstrategies...
n Commissioningneeds toaccommodate themove to greaterchoice withinservices.

n All key partnerswill need to worktogether to ensurethey commissionservices deliveringthe agreed outcomes.

n Some specialistservices ... will haveto be commissionedfor a widergeographical area.

n There needs to be aclear governanceframework forensuring joined upprinciples andprocesses ... acrossgovernment.

n Further work stillneeds to be carriedout on governanceand partnershiplocally.

Developing a Local strategy Figure 4

Page 18



by the needs of older people in communities. All keypartners will need to work together to ensure theycommission services delivering the agreed outcomesfor older people. This means that commissioningarising from the strategies contained in documentslike the local delivery plan and the community planwill be whole system based and developedcollaboratively, based on the needs of older peoplein communities. 
Some specialist services, for reasons of size orcapacity, will have to be commissioned for a widergeographical area.
All levels of commissioning need to be user led, witholder people having much more control about whatis commissioned.

Changing the Way Services areGoverned
Building a governance and partnership structure isrequired if we are to change direction, strategy andcommissioning.
At a national level there has to be a greater focuson cross-government, cross-agency and cross-departmental activity. In particular, there needs to bea clear governance framework for ensuring joined upprinciples, strategies and processes for older peopleacross government.
At a local level, clear accountability andresponsibility for strategic developments and co-ordination of resources is also vital. Under the LocalGovernment Act 2000, councils have the power toproduce a community strategy setting out how theypropose to promote the economic, social andenvironmental wellbeing of their area. The HealthActs allow local authorities and health bodies topool resources and local partners have the option ofestablishing integrated care trusts. NHS primary caretrusts were asked to ensure the involvement of allpartners when establishing their local developmentplans.
Local strategic partnerships have already becomethe mechanism for preparing community strategiesand in many cases have been the catalyst forestablishing relationships across all partners,making a whole system approach to local healthdevelopment plans easier. However further work stillneeds to be carried out in relation to governance and

partnership arrangements at a local level if we are toimprove services for older people.
The local strategic partnerships should provide alocal governance framework for older people. Such aframework is important, as the partnership needs toencompass all relevant agencies. Within theframework, an older people’s partnership board,similar to those for children, should be establishedfor each local authority.
The older people’s partnership board will:
l Provide a forum for multiple partners to work in,
l Create agreement on the priorities to beaddressed,
l Be a focal point for bringing together policies,processes, and resources,
l Develop and coordinate the implementation ofthe strategy for older people by acting asconvenor, problem solver,
l Ensure there is a focus on improved outcomes forolder people and monitor progress against agreedobjectives and targets,
l Provide leadership, motivating and inspiringpeople to change their ways of working,
l Be a catalyst for shaping new ways of working.
The older people’s partnership board will need totake overall responsibility for the commissioningprocess in respect of older people, with a group ofkey staff drawn from the partners to prepare andimplement the details. However, many of thepromotional strategies will be universal, relevant toall people, young and old alike. The local strategicpartnership will consequently need to coordinatestrategies from the older people partnership boardand all other partnerships.
Consulting with community members, includingolder people, about services is not enough. Theyneed to be actively involved in making decisionsabout the priorities, strategies and financing ofservices and should be appropriately represented onthe older people’s partnership board.
Membership should also reflect the range ofagencies involved, including people who havesufficient seniority to make decisions aboutstrategies and resources. This will need to apply tofoundation trusts once they are established.

All Our Tomorrows Page 13

Changing the governance,consulting communities, aclear pathway for olderpeople, a new model...

Page 19



Changing the Way Services areDelivered
To be effective, services that older people and theirinformal carers use need to be user driven, basedaround communities and have real accountability.The older people’s partnership boards will be themechanism for pulling together all local services sothat accountability for the outcomes for older peopleis clear. Whether services are universal or targeted,generic or specialist, through the older people’spartnership board they should form a coherentwhole.
Access to the active community (see figure 3) will bedirect by older people and their informal carers. It isimportant that an easily accessible informationservice is located in the locality, to help older peopleknow what is available within the ‘active community’and how to access the universal services.
A clear pathway as to how an older person will movefrom the universal services to the specialist servicesis essential. Access to the ‘specialist community’should be through a multi-disciplinary team of localprofessionals who will carry out the initial singleassessments, and then commission or deliverspecialist services, when older people require them.One option will be to base this multi-disciplinaryteam in community resource centres, alongsidespecialist integrated teams who possess a widespectrum of other skills appropriate to the needs ofolder people.
Informal carers are often the key supporters andadvocates of older people when they are unable toact without help. The same approach to the deliveryof services therefore applies to carers. It is importantthat services within the active community areavailable to support their needs.

Key features of this new service model are that theywill be:
l Person-centred – flexible services, designedaround the individual needs of older people,
l Easily accessible – twenty four hour, seven day aweek services,
l Delivered in partnership – through integratedteams. The partnership will include health,housing and social services, community

members, the independent and the voluntarysector,
l Community based – locally determined andlocally delivered, but within a national framework.

Changing the Workforce
Developing a workforce that has the new skillsrequired to deliver the changes presents manychallenges, not least in engaging staff with amodernising, performance and cost driven agenda.
Key features of the future workforce for older peoplewill be a multi-disciplinary interagency workforce,which is based within local communities and isjointly responsible for supporting individuals in theirown home, promoting independence and deliveringthe outcomes for older people. Wherever possible,the staff group will be representative of thecommunity in which they serve. They will work toagreed competencies and follow agreed protocolsset locally by the partnership and nationally by thegovernment.
It is unlikely that in the future, there will be aworkforce to deliver the level of services required, asa result of the decreases in the populationmentioned in section one. We will therefore need todevelop the use of paid and unpaid volunteersfurther, and change the status and image ofvolunteers. More older people will also be activelyencouraged to become part of the social careworkforce.
The workforce will develop new types of skills andknowledge. A report prepared for the ADSS,61 statedthat local authorities and partners will need toenhance or establish workers who can effectivelymap the environment, bid for funding and rigorouslycontract with independent and directly managedproviders of older people’s services. For many peoplethis will require new and different skills.
There will also be new roles and jobs developed. Thiscould include brokerage roles, and generic careworkers. Jobs will need to be reviewed and revisedwith a view to amalgamating some jobs andreshaping tasks and responsibilities.
Shared induction and training across public andindependent sector agencies will need to bedeveloped. All front line staff will need a shared setof knowledge and skills so that they are able to give

All Our Tomorrows Page 14

New skills andknowledge, wholesystems workforce,promoting wellbeing...
n Jobs will need tobe reviewed andrevised with a view toamalgamating andreshaping tasks andresponsibilities.

n A whole systemsworkforce plan willbe required for olderpeople's services tofocus on the localcommunity.

n Modernising theworkforce andimplementing thechanges requiresmanagers to possesshigh levels ofleadership, businessand finance skills.

n Further attentionneeds to be given tothe basic pension tomaximise people'sability to maintaintheir independence.

n The promotion ofwellbeing ... shouldbe accompanied by aclearly identifiedbudget.

Page 20



appropriate information and advice to older people,whichever service they work in. All staff andmanagers will require training in key areas such asensuring independence, developing an enablingculture in organisations, person centred planning,and how the use of technology can enhance services.
A whole systems workforce plan will be required forolder people’s services, to focus on the localcommunity, while linking into regional plans. Thiswill address the issues of training, qualifications,career progression and recruitment. It will alsoestablish agreed positions about employment forlocal people.
Modernising the workforce and implementing thechanges will require managers to possess high levelsof leadership, business and finance skills.Leadership programmes to develop these skills willneed to be established.

Changing the Investment in OlderPeople
If we are to support the change in direction, centraland local government need to look more closely atfunding arrangements.
At a national level:
Further attention needs to be given to the basicpension to maximise people’s ability to maintaintheir independence, and to ensure essential itemslike nutritious food, heating, mobility andparticipation in the community are affordable.
The promotion of wellbeing for older people shouldbe seen as a core function for all agencies. It shouldbe accompanied by a clearly identified budget seenas part of mainstream funding. There needs to be adistinction between funding of priorities for targetedservices such as social services, linked to risk andvulnerability factors for older people, and funding tosupport the promotion of successful ageing. Thelatter needs to be recognised in its own right. 
In addition, Government funding in relation to olderpeople needs to be reviewed. Systems of fundingshould be based on the following principles:
l Equity – by definition this will include somelosers and some gainers.
l Sustainability – people need to make long term

plans about their retirement, and thus aframework for developing sustainable funding willbe important.
l Minimum standards – a new system of chargingshould ensure that care is provided to at leastminimum standards. Service users may wish totop up their care package at extra cost, to providea wider range of services not covered by theminimum standard. The funding of care should besufficient to allow for adequate care to bepurchased anywhere in the UK without a ‘top up’.
l Work incentives – any system of charging shouldenable service users to benefit from employment. 
l Single approach to payments – both theDepartment of Work and Pensions and socialservices departments are involved in paymentsfor care. For example, the Department of Workand Pensions pays minimum income guarantee,in addition to attendance allowance andretirement pension. The social servicesdepartment makes a social care assessment andthen a financial assessment to ‘top up’ the benefitpayment to pay for care. Even with the bestliaison and cooperation, this involves a degree ofduplication. The process for payments for caretherefore needs to be streamlined, avoidingduplication.

At a local level: 
As older people’s partnership boards developstrategies to achieve desired outcomes, they willneed to develop a financial component to supportthe change. This should include both revenue andcapital streams, with capital funding directly linkedto supporting the local commissioning plans of theboard. When developing the financial plans there isalso a need to look at what resources already exist.Resourcing the strategy is not just about cash, it isalso about all the non cash resources that couldcontribute to the strategy – for example, staff,equipment, and services.
Agencies also need to develop further the use oftheir powers under the Health Act 1999 and theLocal Government Act 2000 to pool budgets anddevelop more flexible funding arrangements topromote outcomes for older people.

All Our Tomorrows Page 15

Funding arrangements,Health Act powers,rethinking the policy,establishing the vision...

Page 21



Changing Legislation and Regulation
The existing legislative framework for older peopleis based on concepts rooted in the poor law andfocuses on a narrow definition of entitlement linkedto need.
The changes in direction envisaged in this reportfocus on the wider expectation of wellbeing, rights,choice and protection. The promotion of successfulageing should be part of the mainstream function ofall agencies. There should be a focus on goodaccessible housing for older people; good access tohealth care; safe communities; good publictransport; appropriate life long learning, and otherservices that sustain social interaction incommunities.
As services are commissioned differently, involvingan ever greater mixed economy of providers andtypes of service, it may be necessary to change theregulation of services. For example, thestrengthening of regulation looking at the promotionof wellbeing and the protection of vulnerable adults.
Universal products and services, such as transport,retail and financial services, should be produced tostandards that take account of the needs of olderpeople, particularly those with disabilities.
All this involves looking closely at the currentlegislation and rethinking the policy and regulationframework that will be required to support theageing population. The ADSS and the LGA wouldwelcome an opportunity to engage in a wider debateon the legislative and regulatory frameworkunderpinning social services’ work with older people.

Establishing the vision and changingthe direction
The future vision requires that the balance is shiftedfrom focusing on acute care and the most frailelderly to focusing on promoting the wellbeing of allolder people. This needs to be underpinned by clearwellbeing outcomes and indicators to monitorprogress in achieving them. It requires a broadeningof the approach to prevention and the developmentof universal services to support this. 

Recommendations

l There should be a national set of wellbeing outcomes forolder people, which are linked to the vision and strategy.
l There should be a set of local outcomes for older peoplelinked to the vision and strategy and the needs of thelocal community.
l There is a need to develop cross agency performanceindicators which reflect outcomes at both a national andlocal level and against which national and localstrategies should be measured.
l Comprehensive performance assessment and health starrating frameworks should be revitalised on a wholesystem basis.
l Performance indicators should be few but important,easy to collect, and easy to benchmark. Localperformance indicators should be owned, understood andeasily recognised by the local community.
l Information systems across agencies need to be built, sothat performance indicators from different agencies andother sources can be collated and analysed.
l The importance of local authorities taking a wholesystems approach to promoting the needs of older peoplewithin communities should be reinforced throughlegislation, policy and guidance.
l Resources need to be made available at a local level, todevelop a dedicated team of people to implement, monitorand review the strategy for older people, ensure thatresources are spent according to the principles of bestvalue, and facilitate partnership working.

Tackling age discrimination
Continuing to tackle discrimination against olderpeople and developing positive images of ageing willinvolve challenging and changing attitudes to olderpeople in the wider community, beyond the NSFtargets for health and social services.
l Standards of good practice for publication and mediawork should be established by the government, inconsultation with stakeholders, to promote an enhancedimage of, and raise the profile of older people. Furtherconsideration should be given to anti-discriminationlegislation.

Changing the law.Recommendations...
n Make resourcesavailable toimplement, monitorand review thestrategy for olderpeople.

n Tacklediscrimination andpromote an enhancedimage, and raise theprofile, of olderpeople.

n Ensure locally-based commissioning,built aroundcommunities.

n Encourage localgovernment and thevoluntary sector toprovide incentives forolder people toparticipate in theircommunities.

n There should bebetter co-ordinationacross government ofservices for olderpeople.

All Our Tomorrows Page 16

Page 22



Changing the way services arecommissioned
There is a need to develop a community based
whole systems framework for commissioning
universal and specialist services involving
community members and a range of organisations –
for example social services, health, housing, leisure,
education, the independent sector and voluntary
agencies.
l We need to change the way services are commissioned to

ensure that there is locally based commissioning built
around communities. Commissioning needs to be carried
out with a range of key stakeholders, including local
communities and older people.

l There should be a requirement that the local health
delivery plan should be jointly developed with social
services in conjunction with older people, other statutory
partners and the voluntary sector. This would result in
the establishment of joint health and wellbeing delivery
plans for older citizens, which in turn would be linked to
the community plan.

Changing the way services aregoverned
It is important that there is a coherent framework for
decision making and accountability, at a national
and local level.
l There should be better co-ordination across government

departments.
l An older people’s partnership board should be established

by each local authority, to ensure that there is clear
accountability and responsibility for strategic
developments and co-ordination of resources. This older
people’s partnership board would be accountable to the
local strategic partnership.

l Local government and the voluntary sector should be
encouraged to provide active incentives for older people to
participate in their communities, and share their
knowledge and experience.

Changing the way services aredelivered
Services in future need to be user driven, deliveredin partnership with others, integrated, communitybased, flexible and easily accessible. There must bedifferent kinds of services to meet the needs of olderpeople and their informal carers. This would includea reduction in residential and nursing home care,and an expansion of community services.
l Universal services need to be reviewed by the olderpeople’s partnership board, ensuring they meet the needsof older people and their carers and that new services aredeveloped.
l The Department for Education and Skills and localcouncils should examine how older people can betteraccess lifelong learning including basic skills.
l We need to develop a clear framework to allow agencies,communities and individuals to complement each other’sefforts rather than compete with them. Services need to bedelivered based on community needs.
l We need to review fundamentally the direction of travelin relation to the types of social care services currentlyavailable to older people, and those that will be needed inthe future to address the ‘balance of care’. This wouldinvolve looking at the need and availability of long termresidential and nursing home care, the expansion ofcommunity services, and the development of extra carehousing.

Changing the workforce
If we are to develop a more integrated approach totackling priorities and providing a catalyst for jointstrategies we must build partnerships and networksacross a range of agencies. The workforce needs tobe multi-skilled and multi-disciplinary, and thereneeds to be a greater understanding andappreciation of each other’s roles andresponsibilities. This has major implications forinduction, training and workforce planning.
l A whole systems workforce plan for older people’s servicesshould be developed, addressing the workforce issuesidentified in the report, to create a multi-skilledworkforce. It should also take account of sustainablecareers, employment of older people, increased use of

Recommendations...

All Our Tomorrows Page 17

Page 23



volunteers on a paid or unpaid basis, the importance ofimproving the status and image of volunteers, and theimplications of direct payments on the workforce.
l All front line staff working in services for older peopleshould have a core set of knowledge and skills to giveappropriate advice and information to older people. Thiswill involve whole systems induction programmes andshared professional training.
l Older people should have the opportunity to work or haveaccess to other income generating opportunities. TheGovernment should support the recruitment andretention of older people in employment, help more olderpeople to set up their own businesses, and ensure theimplementation of legislation to tackle discrimination ofemployment on the grounds of age.
l The development of new skills for older people should beencouraged, with the removal of barriers to learning andimproved access to learning opportunities.
l Funding for leadership programmes, based aroundcommunities, should be made available bringingtogether managers across agencies to enhancepartnership working, develop joined up strategies, andpool skills and experience. Such opportunities should beopen to older people.

Changing the investment in olderpeople
Different ways of funding services for older peopleshould be considered and these should be based onthe principles of equity, sustainability, the provisionof minimum standards, work incentives andincentives to provide community care.
l An adequate income is a prerequisite for meeting ourneeds. Further attention needs to be given to the basicpension, particularly for the over-80s, to maximisepeople’s ability to maintain their independence andaddress the issue that many older people currently live inpoverty.
l The promotion of wellbeing and the development ofpreventative services for older people should be seen as acore function of all agencies. There should therefore be aclearly identified budget for this core function, whichshould be determined at a national level.

l Agencies need to develop further the use of their powersunder the Health Act 1999 and the Local GovernmentAct 2000 to pool budgets and develop more flexiblefunding arrangements to promote successful ageing andto more effectively commission specialist services.
l Government and key stakeholders should enter into adialogue to re-think the funding system for the socialcare of older people. This funding system shoulddemonstrate a clear approach to the option ofentitlement, financial planning in old age, theresponsibilities of the individual, and a variety ofcharging options drawn from tax credits, privateinsurance and charging systems.
Changing legislation and regulation
The current legislative provision is based on PoorLaw origins. Modern social policy should moreclearly reflect the social model of disability andfamily support policies.
l We would wish to see the opening of a dialogue anddiscussion with government and key stakeholders in re-thinking a modern social policy framework to support theageing population.
l Legislation should be introduced so that all agencies havea duty to ensure the protection of older people at greatestrisk. An independent person should be appointed forthose people who do not have active carers, but who havecomplex needs which put them particularly at risk ofcognitive impairment and social isolation.
l The ‘power to promote or improve the economic, social orenvironmental wellbeing of their area’, provided to localauthorities under the Local Government Act 2000,should become a ‘duty to promote or improve theeconomic, social or environmental wellbeing of theirarea.’
As services are commissioned and delivered in adifferent way, and a more mixed economy of private,voluntary, community and local authority providersis developed, the regulation of services will need tobe adapted and changed accordingly.
l The regulatory framework needs to be revised andrebalanced. For example, the approaches to regulationlooking at the promotion of wellbeing and the protectionof vulnerable adults needs to be strengthened, and thereshould be less regulation in other areas.

All Our Tomorrows Page 18

Recommendations...
n Rethink modernsocial policy toreflect the socialmodel of disabilityand family supportservices.

n A National Charterfor Older Peopleshould be developeddetailing nationalstandards.

n We need to findnatural leaders at alllevels .. and supportthe leadership skillsof older people.

n Real change occursby sustaining a focuson key priorities.

Page 24



l A National Charter for Older People should be developeddetailing national standards for all products andservices. The charter should aim to ensure that theindependence of older people is not restricted and thatcurrent obstacles such as access to information, betterrural transport, more accessible housing, are overcome.
l The second phase of the national service framework forolder people, The comprehensive performance assessmentand the health star ratings all need to be reviewed in thelight of this future vision.

Conclusions
Meeting the challenges and opportunities presentedby an ageing population, and improving the lives ofall of us as we age will require many changes in theway we work. Delivering positive changes is all aboutmodernisation and leadership. 
Leadership is central to the quest for real anddurable change. Taking forward the approach toimproving services for older people will requireleadership that extends beyond traditionalboundaries. It will involve a visible and committedgroup of leaders within a locality who have a sharedsense of purpose and take collective responsibilityfor delivering the end goals. 
Leadership is not just confined to professionals,politicians or other established community leaders.We need to find natural leaders at all levels, and inparticular support the leadership skills of olderpeople.
A key factor in taking forward this new approach willbe some degree of local ownership by bothprofessionals and communities, involving a muchwider group. The concept of ‘champions’ offers olderpeople themselves and front line staff in everyservice the chance to champion the cause of olderpeople within their everyday environments.Communication is critical to this activity.
Real change occurs by sustaining a focus on keypriorities. It will involve persistence, resilience andconsistency by leaders. Leaders will need to put inplace a clear framework for delivering the changesoutlined in the report, ensuring theirimplementation.
Fundamental to this change will be the importanceof leaders, professionals and communities listening

to older people, understanding what matters tothem, and involving them at every stage of thechange process.
As a result, older people will enjoy the full range ofexpectations of any citizen and will be able toexercise real choice in their lives. They will havemore buying power, be more influential, have astronger influence and control over the servicesprovided, and be recognised as an active voice inshaping services. They will have the information,advice and access to resources in order to takeaction for themselves becoming experts in their owncare.
This agenda is huge and challenging for us all, but itis vital that we make a start now. The ADSS and theLGA are fully committed to working with allinterested parties to help shape the future in a waythat will be of benefit to us all.

All Our Tomorrows Page 19

Conclusion

Page 25



1 National Service Framework for Older People: Meetingthe Milestones Draft 2 
2 Population Projections by the Government Actuary,England, 2001 - based principal projection,www.gad.gov.uk, May 2003
3 Independent Inquiry into Inequalities in Health,Chairman Sir Donald Acheson, The Stationery Office.November 1998
4 Community Care Direct Payments Act 1996,Department of Health
5 Health and Social Care Act 2001, Department ofHealth
6 Hayden and Boaz, Making a Difference, BetterGovernment for Older People, May 2000
7 Promoted by the DES in recognition of the role ofcontinued learning in supporting older people
8 National Service Framework for Older People,Department of Health, March 2001
9 Evaluating Care for Elderly People, Key Findings, seewww.ukc.ac.uk/PSSRU
10 The NHS Plan, Department of Health, July 2000
11 Modern Social Services, A Commitment to Reform,Department of Health, August 2002.
12 Growing Older, The ESRC Research Programme onExtending Quality of Life,www.shef.ac.uk/uni/projects/gop
13 Health Act 1999 and Health and Social Care Act2001, Department of Health
14 www.spkweb.org.uk, Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
15 Modern Social Services, A Commitment to Reform,Department of Health, August 2002 
16 Statistics available atwww.doh.uk/comcare2002/ccstats2002
17 Modern Social Services, A Commitment to Deliver,Department of Health, August 2002 

18 Caring for Older People at Home, Social Work Researchand Development Unit, University of York, March 2000
19 Evaluating Care for Elderly People key findings, seewww.ukc.ac.uk/PSSRU
20 Modern Social Services, A Commitment to Reform,Department of Health, August 2002
21 Carers (Recognition and Services) Act 1995,Department of Health
22 A Matter of Chance for Carers, Department of Health,Nov 1998
23 Growing Older, The ESRC Research Programme onExtending Quality of Life,www.shef.ac.uk/uni/projects/gop
24 Help the Aged/MORI 2002
25 Strategy for Housing Older People in England,Housing Corporation, March 2003.
26 National Service Framework for Older People: Meetingthe Milestones Draft 2, Department of Health,September 2002 
27 Forget Me Not, Audit Commission, January 2000
28 Independent Inquiry into Inequalities in Health,Chairman Sir Donald Acheson, The Stationery Office.November 1998
29 New survey of GPs confirm age discrimination in theNHS, Age Concern England, May 2000
30 The NHS Plan, Department of Health, July 2000
31 Health Act 1999 and Health and Social Care Act2001, Department of Health
32 Integrated Services for Older People, Audit Commission2002
33 Independent Inquiry into Inequalities in Health,Chairman Sir Donald Acheson, The Stationery Office.November 1998
34 see note 1

References

All Our Tomorrows Page 20

Page 26



35 A Matter of Chance for Carers, Department of Health,November 1998
36 Missed Opportunities, Carers UK, Carers NationalAssociation, June 2003 
37 Perceptions of Social work and Social Care, COICommunications, 2001, www.doh.gov.uk/scg/workforce
38 Local Authority Social Services Workforce Survey,2001, Employer Organisation for Local Government
39 Independent Sector Workforce Survey, 2001, EmployerOrganisation for Local Government
40 Tracking the Changes in Social Services in England,Joint Review Team Annual Report 2001/2. AuditCommission/Department of Health
41 Independent Sector Workforce Survey, 2001, EmployerOrganisation for Local Government
42 Independent Sector Workforce Survey, 2001, EmployerOrganisation for Local Government
43 Statistical Bulletin, Personal Social ServicesExpenditure and Unit Costs, England, Department ofHealth, 2001-2002
44 Pensions Service, Department of Work and Pensions,www.pensionguide.gov.uk
45 Poverty - The Facts, Help the Aged,www.helptheaged.org.uk
46 Pensioner Income Series 2000/1
47 Tackling Pensioner Poverty: Encouraging Take Up ofEntitlements, National Audit Office, November 2002Social Exclusion and Quality of Life in Old Age, Dr TScharf, Centre for Social Gerontology, Keele University.Research funded by ESRC July 2003
48 Social Exclusion and Quality of Life in Old Age, Dr TScharf, Centre for Social Gerontology, Keele University.Research funded by ESRC July 2003
49 Fair Access to Care, Department of Health, Aug 2002
50 Community Care Act 1993, Department of Health

51 The statistics do not distinguish between home careprovided to older people and other adults. It is estimatedthat 85 per cent of the total is provided to ages 65-plus.See The 11th Annual Report of the Chief Inspector ofSocial Services, Department of Health, Appendix A Fig1.10.
52 Home Care for Adults, England 1999 and 2002,Department of Health, available atwww.doh.gov.uk/stats/hh99 and hh2002
53 At a conference jointly sponsored by the Department ofHealth, ADSS, Anchor Trust and the Nuffield Institutefor Health, 1997
54 Living Well in Old Age, ADSS, LGA, AuditCommission, Better Government for Older People,Nuffield Institute for Health, 2003
55 Living Well in Later Life :From Prevention toPromotion, Wistow.G, Waddington.E, Godfrey.M,Nuffield Institute for Health, 2003
56 Promoting Wellbeing and Independence with OlderPeople, Audit Commission, Better Government for OlderPeople. 2003
57 see White Paper: Strong Local Government – QualityPublic Services, DTLR, Dec 2001
58 Building Capacity for Local Decision Making, Centrefor the Study of Social Policy, Georgia, Missouri andVermont, July 2001.
59 Know your Community: A Step-by Step Guide toCommunity Needs and Resources Assessment, TheFamily Resource Coalition of America, Chicago, 1995.
60 Glendinning C, 2003, What Could a Local Strategy forPromoting Independence Look like?, discussion paper.
61 Workforce Planning: The Challenge for Older PeopleServices, report to ADSS Older People’s Committee,December 2002, Waller. A and Yardley E.

All Our Tomorrows Page 21

References

Page 27



Christabel Shawcross, London Borough of Brent
Roderick Knight, Dorset County Council
Mary Gillingham, ADSS
Drew Clode, ADSS
David Gardiner, UK Older people’s Advisory Board,
Better Government for Older People, Member of the
Partnership Board
Dwayne Johnson, Halton Borough Council
Elaine Yardley, Leicester City Council
Bev Wormald, Ashfield PCT
Ruth Auton, LNR Workforce Development Confederation
Julie Shepherd, Northamptonshire County Council
Sandie Keene, Sheffield City Council
Caroline Bach, Leicester City Council
Kieran Hickey, Derbyshire County Council
Penelope Shuttleworth, NHS Modernisation Agency
Mark Davies, Leicester City Council
Stephanie Conham, Local Government Association
Sheila Rochester, Leicestershire County Council
Sam Lloyd, Rutland Social Services and Housing
Department
Pauline McCoy, Nottinghamshire County Council
Dee Stanley Smith, Derby City Council
Mary Godfrey, Nuffield Institute for Health
Pat Gallimore, Derby City Council

This paper was commissioned by the ADSS and the LGAwith special thanks to:
David Behan, Director of Social Services, London Boroughof Greenwich, President ADSS
Alison King, Chair LGA Social Affairs and HealthExecutive
Andrew Cozens, Corporate Director of Social Care andHealth, Leicester City Council, Senior Vice President ADSS
Glenys Jones, Director of Social Services, City ofSunderland Council, Chair ADSS Older People’s Committee
Simon Weeks, Local Government Association
Christine Paley, Director of Social Services, ThurrockCouncil, Vice Chair ADSS Older People’s Committee
Alison Painter, Independent Consultant, CreativeExchanges
Neil Singleton, Independent Consultant, CreativeExchanges
Eilleen Waddington, Nuffield Institute for Health
Jane Carrier, Audit Commission
David Martin, Better Government for Older People
Clare Woodford, NHS Confederation
Elaine Stewart, Department of Work and Pensions
Anne McDonald, Department of Health
Margaret Sheather, Director of Social Services,Gloucestershire County Council
Stuart Brook, Director of Social Services, NottinghamshireCounty Council
Philip Lewer, Director of Social Services, CalderdaleMetropolitan Borough Council

Appendix 1

All Our Tomorrows Page 22

With thanks to the Local Government Association for all photographs reproduced herein.

Page 28



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY 
Community Care FACS Criteria

 You will be entitled to receive a community care service if:

� You are a resident of Haringey

and

� You are over the age of 18

and

You have one or more of the following:

� a learning disability

� an addiction to drugs or other chemical substances, including alcohol

� a life-limiting illness or are HIV positive (or both)

� mental health problem

� a physical disability or a sensory impairment

� physical or mental frailty

and

� your needs are assessed as eligible within either the critical or substantial
bands of the Framework (see below)

Page 29



ELIGIBILITY FRAMEWORK

Background

This Eligibility Framework (referred to as the ‘Framework’) is implemented as part of
the Fair Access to Care Services Guidance (LAC(2002)13) and will be used as a
single framework to make eligibility decisions.   The Guidance states that the
wording of the Framework must not be changed.  This framework is to be used to
make decisions regarding eligible needs, i.e. needs for which a social care service will
be provided.

There are four bands in the Framework : critical, substantial, moderate and low.
These bands interact with four areas of risk to an individual’s independence, these
are as follows:

1. Autonomy
2. Health and Safety
3. Management of Daily Routines
4. Involvement in Family and Wider Community Life

By using the four areas of risk to independence as a guide, a decision can be made as
to whether an individual’s needs are eligible for a service.

Haringey Council proposes to set the eligibility threshold between the
substantial and moderate risk bands, a decision which will be subject to annual
review, and may therefore change. We will therefore regard all those needs that fall
in the critical and substantial bands as ‘eligible’ needs. A service will be provided to
address eligible needs.

We also endorse a preventative approach to providing community care services.
We will therefore aim (though cannot guarantee) to provide a service for non-
eligible needs if it would prevent the need from worsening over time should it not be
addressed.

How to Use the Framework

This framework reinforces a needs-led approach so that an individual’s need/s are
assessed and the relevant services sought to meet those needs. 

Eligibility for an individual is determined following assessment.  As part of the
assessment, information about an individual's presenting needs and related
circumstances is established, and will be recorded.  This information is then
evaluated against the risks to his or her autonomy, health and safety, management
of daily routines, and involvement in family and wider community life.

Where it is necessary to prioritise the speed of our response, needs which fall
into the critical band will receive a higher priority than those in the substantial
band. However, within each band, the four areas of risk to independence are
regarded as equally weighted. The sole exception to this rule is where there is a
critical risk to life, which, as now, will take priority over any other type of risk.

Page 30



 A person may present with both eligible and non-eligible needs. Even if only one of
their needs is eligible they will be entitled to a service which addresses that need. 

However, we are not obliged to meet this person’s non-eligible needs, although
sometimes this will happen as a by-product of the services provided to meet the
eligible need.  Although the council will not be able to meet those needs which fall
into the moderate or low risk bands, we will aim to offer advice and information
on other possible sources of help.  It is also necessary to ensure a long-term,
preventative approach.

Page 31



LE
V

E
L 

O
F 

R
IS

K
 T

O
 I
N

D
E
P
E
N

D
E
N

C
E

E
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

H
el

p
N

o
t 

E
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

H
el

p

K
E
Y

 F
A

C
T

O
R

S 
IN

 
M

A
IN

T
A

IN
IN

G
IN

D
E
P
E
N

D
E
N

C
E

C
R

IT
IC

A
L

A
t 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 r

is
k

SU
B

ST
A

N
T

IA
L

In
 n

ee
d
 o

f 
a 

se
rv

ic
e

M
O

D
E
R

A
T

E
O

c
c
a
si

o
n

a
l

se
rv

ic
e
/r

e
h

a
b

/e
q

u
ip

LO
W

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo

1
. 
 A

U
T

O
N

O
M

Y
T

h
is

 r
ef

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

co
n
tr

o
l 
a

p
er

so
n
 h

as
 o

ve
r 

th
ei

r
im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
it
u
at

io
n
 a

n
d

h
o
w

 f
ar

 t
h
ey

 c
an

 m
ak

e 
an

d
ac

t 
o
n
 i
n
fo

rm
ed

 c
h
o
ic

es

�
th

er
e 

is
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

 l
it
tl
e

o
r 

n
o
 c

h
o
ic

e 
an

d
co

n
tr

o
l 
o
ve

r 
vi

ta
l

as
p
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e
im

m
ed

ia
te

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t

�
th

er
e 

is
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

 o
n
ly

p
ar

ti
al

 c
h
o
ic

e 
an

d
co

n
tr

o
l 
o
ve

r 
th

e
im

m
ed

ia
te

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t

2
. 
 H

E
A

LT
H

 &
 S

A
FE

T
Y

N
ee

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
si

d
er

: 
 r

is
k 

to
m

en
ta

l 
an

d
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 h
ea

lt
h
,

m
ai

n
ta

in
in

g 
cu

rr
en

t 
h
ea

lt
h

an
d
 p

re
ve

n
ti
n
g

d
et

er
io

ra
ti
o
n
., 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
cl

ie
n
t 

o
r 

o
th

er
s 

fr
o
m

 h
ar

m
w

h
et

h
er

 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
al

 o
r

u
n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
al

�
lif

e 
is

, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

th
re

at
en

ed

�
si

gn
ifi

ca
n
t 

h
ea

lt
h

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

h
av

e
d
ev

el
o
p
ed

 o
r 

w
ill

d
ev

el
o
p

�
se

ri
o
u
s 

ab
u
se

 o
r 

n
eg

le
ct

h
as

 o
cc

u
rr

ed
 o

r 
w

ill

�
ab

u
se

 o
r 

n
eg

le
ct

 h
as

o
cc

u
rr

ed
 o

r 
w

ill
 o

cc
ur

 

Page 32



o
cc

u
r

3
. 
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
D

A
IL

Y
 R

O
U

T
IN

E
S

T
h
is

 i
s 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
a

p
er

so
n
 t

o
: 
lo

o
k 

af
te

r 
th

ei
r

p
er

so
n
al

 c
ar

e,
 d

o
m

es
ti
c

n
ee

d
s,

 o
th

er
 d

ai
ly

 r
o
u
ti
n
es

an
d
 l
o
o
k 

af
te

r 
th

ei
r

d
ep

en
d
an

ts
.

�
th

er
e 

is
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

 a
n

in
ab

ili
ty

 t
o
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t

vi
ta

l 
p
er

so
n
al

 c
ar

e 
o
r

d
o
m

es
ti
c 

ro
u
ti
n
es

�
th

er
e 

is
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

 a
n

in
ab

ili
ty

 t
o
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t 

th
e

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
p
er

so
n
al

 c
ar

e
o
r 

d
o
m

es
ti
c 

ro
u
ti
n
es

�
th

er
e 

is
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

 a
n

in
ab

ili
ty

 t
o
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t

se
ve

ra
l 
p
er

so
n
al

 c
ar

e 
o
r

d
o
m

es
ti
c 

ro
u
ti
n
es

 

�
th

er
e 

is
, 
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e,

 a
n

in
ab

ili
ty

 t
o
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t 

o
n
e

o
r 

tw
o
 p

er
so

n
al

 c
ar

e 
o
r

d
o
m

es
ti
c 

ro
u
ti
n
es

4
. 
 I
N

V
O

LV
E
M

E
N

T
 I
N

FA
M

IL
Y

 A
N

D
 W

ID
E
R

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 L
IF

E
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 l
ei

su
re

ac
ti
vi

ti
es

, 
h
o
b
b
ie

s,
 p

ai
d
 a

n
d

u
n
p
ai

d
 w

o
rk

, 
le

ar
n
in

g 
an

d
vo

lu
n
te

er
in

g.

�
vi

ta
l 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

w
o
rk

, 
ed

u
ca

ti
o
n
 o

r
le

ar
n
in

g 
ca

n
n
o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

n
o
t 

b
e 

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

vi
ta

l 
so

ci
al

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

sy
st

em
s 

an
d

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

ca
n
n
o
t 

o
r

�
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 m
an

y
as

p
ec

ts
 o

f 
w

o
rk

,
ed

u
ca

ti
o
n
 o

r 
le

ar
n
in

g
ca

n
n
o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

th
e 

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
so

ci
al

su
p
p
o
rt

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d

�
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 s
ev

er
al

as
p
ec

ts
 o

f 
w

o
rk

,
ed

u
ca

ti
o
n
 o

r 
le

ar
n
in

g
ca

n
n
o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

se
ve

ra
l 
so

ci
al

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

sy
st

em
s 

an
d

�
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 o
n
e 

o
r 

tw
o

as
p
ec

ts
 o

f 
w

o
rk

, 
ed

u
ca

ti
o
n

o
r 

le
ar

n
in

g 
ca

n
n
o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

n
o
t 

b
e 

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

o
n
e 

o
r 

tw
o
 s

o
ci

al
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

sy
st

em
s 

an
d
 r

el
at

io
n
sh

ip
s

ca
n
n
o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e

Page 33



w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e 

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

vi
ta

l 
fa

m
ily

 a
n
d
 o

th
er

so
ci

al
 r

o
le

s 
an

d
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 c
an

n
o
t

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

n
.

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

ca
n
n
o
t 

o
r

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e 

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

th
e 

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

an
d
 o

th
er

 s
o
ci

al
 r

o
le

s
an

d
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

ca
n
n
o
t 

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

n
.

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

ca
n
n
o
t 

o
r

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e 

su
st

ai
n
ed

 
�

se
ve

ra
l 
fa

m
ily

 a
n
d
 o

th
er

so
ci

al
 r

o
le

s 
an

d
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 c
an

n
o
t

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

n
.

su
st

ai
n
ed

�
o
n
e 

o
r 

tw
o
 f
am

ily
 a

n
d

o
th

er
 s

o
ci

al
 r

o
le

s 
an

d
re

sp
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 c
an

n
o
t 

o
r

w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e 

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

n
.

Page 34



 

www.haringey.gov.uk 

HARINGEY LIBRARY SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE 
 
Most Library users in Haringey are young; nonetheless some areas in the Borough have 
significant numbers of older people, and we aim to provide a range of services to meet the 
needs of our older customers. It is important to understand that ‘older customers’ are 
individuals; each one may have very different interests and very different abilities. 
Someone aged fifty may regard themselves as ‘old’, while a seventy year old still feels – 
and describes themselves – as young. 
 
In order to provide appropriate services and facilities for older people, we focus on a 
number of issues: 
 
Facilities 
 
We aim to ensure that libraries are comfortable for older people to use. Although we 
provide mobile library services and deliver books to the homes of housebound customers, 
it is more pleasant for the customer and better value for money for the Service if older 
people can make use of our library buildings. 
 
In order to ensure that older users can access our facilities in comfort, we review our 
facilities to ensure that they are appropriate to the needs of the older person.  Accessibility 
is particularly important. Four of our nine libraries are fully accessible and have accessible 
toilet facilities. Where there are still access issues, we are addressing these with new 
development or major refurbishments. 
 
The furniture used in libraries is also important. We try to ensure that books and other 
library materials are easy to reach, neither too high, nor too low. In Wood Green Library, 
for instance, we consulted the views of the public in a survey entitled, "Are you sitting 
comfortably?".  As a result of our findings, we installed higher seats with arms, which our 
older customers found easier to use and also purchased a number of small trolleys to be 
used when a customer collects items to borrow.   
 
 
Stock 
 
Older people may experience difficulties with vision and hearing.  We therefore provide 
large print materials, and books on cassette or CD.  These items are not used exclusively 
by older people but they often prove helpful in ensuring that older people can enjoy the 
pleasure of reading for longer. 
 
Material may also be selected with the tastes of older people in mind.  This selection 
process cannot be regarded too simplistically however, as the definition of the older 
person may stretch from 50 upwards - and many of all ages read very widely. 
 
 
ICT 

Agenda Item 6Page 35



 
Older people may not be as familiar with ICT as younger generations.  We provide 
People's Network facilities for all ages, offering free access to the Internet and also 
providing office software and printing facilities. 
 
In order to ensure that older people can receive training in the use of these facilities, we 
provide Silver Surfer Training sessions in all libraries. These sessions give an opportunity 
for people to meet and get to know each other – and often become more like a club. 
Individual coaching is also available if required.  These services are all free of charge. 
 
Some users require adapted hardware to enable them to use technology more effectively.  
Aids range from keyboards with larger keys to specific software for use by individuals with 
some level of visual impairment.  We also provide desks which can accommodate 
wheelchairs and which are easily adjustable.  
 
 
Services 
 
Although users enjoy visiting the library, some have mobility problems which means that a 
housebound service is the only way they can continue to access library facilities. 
 
We provide both mobile and housebound services, lending not only books and audio-
visual material, but also the equipment required to play talking books on cassette and CD.  
We also provide deposit collections for old people's homes across the Borough.  In 
addition, we work with other organisations such as the Asian Centre and the Afro-
Caribbean Centre which provide facilities for older people within these communities. 
 
Within Haringey we have a specialist Reminiscence Librarian who works with older people, 
talking about objects and books which act as a focus for memory.  Some of the members 
of the reminiscence groups have recorded their memories; others have written them - and 
here there is often a link with the Silver Surfer programmes.  Indeed a number of the 
recollections of older people in Haringey have been posted on the BBC Web site.  We 
have an annual exhibition of reminiscence work. 
 
 
Information and Learning 
 
Libraries provide a range of information services and a number of these are targeted 
towards older people.  
 
We focus on health for the older person.  We have Happy Heart days, focussing on 
keeping fit and healthy for as long as possible.  A health specialist is located in a library for 
the day to give advice and support.  Another area for health awareness is mobility and, 
again, we hold "Keep moving on" sessions where specialists work with older people to 
encourage them.  We have regular clinics run by partner organisations, such as Age 
Concern and the Pensions Service. 

Page 36



 
We hold learning activities, too, including the Older and Bolder programme which provides 
a range of courses and activities for the older person. 
 
 
Just meeting other people… 
 
In a number of our libraries we offer coffee mornings or drop-in sessions specifically for 
older people.  These together with Silver Surfer sessions, the information and learning 
programmes and, indeed the housebound and mobile library services enable older people 
to meet with others.  We organise outings, activities and parties - and all seem to enjoy the 
varied programme.  
 
Staffing 
 
A number of staff within the Libraries, Archives and Museum service are specifically 
concerned with older people.  These have been brought together within an Action on 
Ageing Team whose aim is to improve and enhance our services for older people. 
 
Diana Edmonds 
Assistant Director, Culture, Libraries and Learning 
 
9 November 2007 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



‘W
e
ll
-b
e
in
g
’,
 p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

&
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 /
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le

R
o
b
e
rt
 E
d
m
o
n
d
s
, 
D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 A
g
e
 C
o
n
c
e
rn
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y

1
9
th
 N
o
v
 2
0
0
7

Agenda Item 8Page 39



T
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 …

•
M
o
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 o
n
 f
e
w
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le

•
P
re
-o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e

•
T
h
e
 ‘
w
e
lf
a
re
 n
e
t’
–
to
o
 l
it
tl
e
, 
to
o
 l
a
te

•
T
h
e
 b
o
tt
o
m
 o
f 
th
e
 s
lip
p
e
ry
 s
lo
p
e

H
o
w
 c
a
n
 w
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
n
 ‘
u
p
s
tr
e
a
m
’
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
?

In
v
e
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
ri
a
n
g
le
 o
f 
c
a
re
 …

Page 40



A
c
u
te

C
a
re

F
ra
il 
O
ld
e
r

P
e
o
p
le

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 P
o
lic
ie
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 E
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t;
 S
a
fe
ty

H
o
u
s
in
g
; 
L
e
a
rn
in
g

D
ir
e
c
t 
U
s
e
rs
 

&
 C
a
re
rs

In
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

F
a
m
ili
e
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

C
it
iz
e
n
s

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
S
o
c
ia
l

C
a
re
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g

P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r

F
a
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

A
ll
P
a
rt
n
e
rs

1
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
 T
o
d
a
y

Page 41



S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t

C
a
re

P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 &

W
e
llb
e
in
g
 

P
o
lic
ie
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 E
m
p
o
w
e
rm

e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t;
 S
a
fe
ty

H
o
u
s
in
g
; 
L
e
a
rn
in
g

D
ir
e
c
t 
U
s
e
rs
 

&
 C
a
re
rs

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
S
o
c
ia
l

C
a
re
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g

In
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

F
a
m
ili
e
s

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r

F
a
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

C
it
iz
e
n
s

A
ll 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs

2
. 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
 T
o
m
o
rr
o
w

Page 42



T
h
e
 C
o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n

1
.
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
o
r 
d
e
la
y
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 

fo
r 
m
o
re
 c
o
s
tl
y
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

2
.
S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
lif
e
 o
f 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

Page 43



W
h
e
re
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
t?

•
8
5
%
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
g
e
in
g

•
1
5
%
 s
o
c
ia
l 
&
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re

Page 44



O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 …

•
a
s
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 c
it
iz
e
n
s

•
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
ll 
a
c
c
e
s
s

•
to
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
/u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

Page 45



A
 N
e
w
 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

T
h
e
 A
c
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
:

•T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

•H
o
u
s
in
g

•L
if
e
lo
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g

•L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

•P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re

•C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
e
a
lt
h

•C
lu
b
s
 &
 S
o
c
ie
ti
e
s

•C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e

•P
e
n
s
io
n
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e

•V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r

•C
ri
m
e
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n

•F
a
it
h
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

In
fo
rm
a
l 
C
a
re
rs

O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le

S
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
:

•A
c
u
te
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l

•I
n
te
rm

e
d
ia
te
 C
a
re

•M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

•C
a
re
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

Page 46



C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
)

•
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 

•
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 (
H
F
O
P
)

•
‘P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
’
(P
O
P
P
) 

p
ro
je
c
ts

•
U
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

ri
g
h
t 
fo
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 =
 r
ig
h
t 
fo
r 
a
ll

Page 47



H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y

•
O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 C
o
u
n
ts
)

•
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

•
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e

•
S
o
c
ia
l 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

•
D
iv
e
rs
it
y

•
H
e
a
lt
h
, 
in
te
rm

e
d
ia
te
 c
a
re

•
S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

•
S
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

•
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

•
H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 h
o
m
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

Page 48



C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

•
O
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
?
 

•
L
o
c
a
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t
/ 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
D
a
y
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s

•
C
a
re
rs
 G
ra
n
t

•
Q
u
a
lit
y
, 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g

B
U
T

•
S
p
e
n
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 ‘
n
o
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
’

Page 49



(O
ld
e
r)
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
a
n
t 
to
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
:

•
C
o
m
p
e
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l

•
In
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g

•
P
ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
fu
l

•
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 (
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
)

Page 50


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Overview and Feedback from Commissioning Panel
	Haringey FACS Criteria

	6 Libraries Service
	8 Voluntary Sector

